
There may be a quorum of the Belle Plaine City Council present at the meeting.

218 North Meridian St., P.O. Box 129, Belle Plaine, MN  56011 Phone 952-873-5553 fax 952-873-5509
www.belleplainemn.com

BELLE PLAINE DESIGN COMMITTEE
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA

CITY HALL, 218 NORTH MERIDIAN STREET
PLEASE USE THE NORTH ENTRANCE

MONDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2016
5:15 P.M.

5:15
P.M.

1. CALL TO ORDER. 1.1. Roll Call.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.
3.1. Regular Session Minutes of September 6, 2016.

4. BUSINESS.
4.1. Project Update/Discussion Future.

5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS.
5.1. Commissioner Comments.
5.2. Upcoming Meeting.

1. Next Regular Meeting, 5:15 p.m., Monday, November 7, 2016.

6. ADJOURNMENT.



BELLE PLAINE DESIGN COMMITTEE
REGULAR SESSION

AUGUST 1, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER. 1.1. Roll Call.

The Belle Plaine Design Committee met in Regular Session on Monday, August 1, 2016 at City Hall, 218
North Meridian Street, Belle Plaine, Minnesota. Chair Rick Krant called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m.
with Commissioners Greg Theissen, Laurie Behnke and Pat Krings present. Also present were
Community Development Director Cynthia Smith Strack and Council Liaison Cary Coop. Commissioner
Kathy Joerg was not present.

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

MOTION by Coop, second by Behnke, to approve the agenda as presented. ALL VOTED AYE.  MOTION
CARRIED.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES. 3.1. Regular Session Minutes of June 6, 2016.

MOTION by Coop, second by Theissen, to approve the Regular Session Minutes of June 6, 2016 as
presented. ALL VOTED AYE.  MOTION CARRIED.

4. BUSINESS.

4.1. Design Manual Update.

Community Development Director Smith Strack explained that Staff has completed a revision of the Belle
Plaine Design Manual. The Manual was placed into effect in 2008. The Design Manual functions as a
policy document and is not incorporated in the Code. The changes incorporated in the 2016 update are:

- Document style to be consistent with other City documents (consistency in branding)
- Document format and links; create local editable version (2008 static scanned pdf, non-editable)
- Incorporate language relating to administration of the manual to establish administrative processing
standards and guidance for implementation of the document versus suggested alternative
approaches.

Community Development Director Smith Strack distributed the revised 130-page Design Manual.

The Commissioners reviewed the 2016 Design Manual and acknowledged the work of Staff in the
preparation of the updated version.

MOTION by Krings, second by Coop, to recommend the City Council adopt the updated 2016 Design
Manual. ALL VOTED AYE.  MOTION CARRIED.

4.2. Walking Tour Debrief– Downtown Accent Lighting.

Community Development Director Smith Strack referenced the tour of the downtown area on June 6,
2016 with Sam Kessel, Landscape Architect with Bolton-Menk. Bolton-Menk will be creating an estimate
and sketch for uplighting trees immediately adjacent to the intersection of Main and Meridian. There are a
total of eight trees and two canisters would be installed in the sidewalk/boulevard on two sides of each
tree (total of 16 lights). The City Engineer will confirm existing electrical infrastructure can be used. A
concrete panel where each light will be replaced would need to be removed. The sidewalk panel could be
replaced with stamped concrete or pavers. The lights would be red, blue, green plus white and the ability
to control the lighting pattern.

Community Development Director Smith Strack reported the Belle Plaine Chamber of Commerce has
recently donated $26,000 to the City, requesting the funds be split equally on downtown improvements



Belle Plaine Design Committee Page 2 of 3
Regular Session
August 1, 2016
Unapproved

and the community pool. The rough estimate for 16 in-ground lights for eight trees near the intersection of
Main and Meridian is $56,000. Council Liaison Coop supports the in-ground lighting project and
recommended asking for the complete $26,000, rather than retaining half of the donated funds for the
pool. The next step would be to ask the Council to match the $26,000 in order to complete this project.
Krant concurred with Coop in moving the lighting project forward. Krant also suggested the downtown
planters be re-located as some appear to be abandoned. For the downtown streetscape, Krings
mentioned the idea brought forward by Commissioner Joerg at a previous meeting that involves wrought
iron tree fence surrounding the trees. The Commissioners asked Staff to research tree guards/fences as
part of the project, along with the installation of pavers for the concrete replacement and the redistribution
of the planters.

MOTION by Coop, second by Behnke, to recommend the City Council authorize the expenditure of
$13,000 towards the installation of 16 in-ground lighting that includes colored lights, (RGBW), for the eight
trees located near the intersection of Main and Meridian Streets. Furthermore, it is recommended to ask
the Chamber of Commerce for additional funds of $15,000 to meet half the cost of the lighting project,
and the City to provide matching funds of $28,000 to cover the $56,000 project cost. ALL VOTED AYE.
MOTION CARRIED.

4.3. 2017 Budget Discussion: Entry Signs, Accent Lighting, Wayfinding Signage, Other.

Community Development Director Smith Strack explained that Finance Director Dawn Meyer is convening
the 2017 annual budget process. The Design Committee has over the previous several years discussed a
few projects requiring capital outlay, including entry signs adjacent to Highway 169, accent lighting in
downtown and directional/wayfinding signage adjacent to roadways under County jurisdiction. Community
Development Director Smith Strack facilitated discussion on projects and budget.

The Commissioners discussed budgeting for two future entrance monuments for northbound and
southbound TH169 corridor. The Commissioners would like to pursue an entrance monument of natural
limestone or brick construction, rather than the plastic-like material of the one located along TH 25/River
crossing. A discussion followed on creating a budget for the Design Committee for entrance monuments,
or incorporate with the EDA capital improvement project.

MOTION by Krings, second by Coop, to recommend the EDA consider implementing a Capital
Improvement budget line item and to include the annual budget of $25,000 for the purpose of entrance
monuments. ALL VOTED AYE.  MOTION CARRIED.

The topic of wayfinding signs was presented. Coop noted the importance of wayfinding signage for the
schools, particularly Oakcrest Elementary and the athletic complex. Community Development Director
Smith Strack informed the Commissioners of the new MNDOT signage along TH169, directional and
business signs, resulting from the completion of Enterprise Drive Overpass. She also noted that Highway
52 is serving as a pilot program for business logo advertising and hopes this option will be made available
for the TH169 corridor. Behnke would like to revisit the Wayfinding Plan. The Commissioners concurred.
This issue will be placed on next month’s agenda. Coop commented on the EDA’s subsidized rent
program about 10 years ago for the billboard located at Meridian Street and TH169.

5. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS.

5.1. Commissioner Comments.

Coop noted the park sign identifying Court Square was demolished a few years and never replaced. He
suggested that a sign to ordered. Community Development Director Smith Strack will check with the
Public Works Superintendent about this expenditure. Krant commented on the poor condition of the
plastic liners of the downtown waste receptacles. Coop concurred, further recommending the containers
and receptacles be cleaned and renewed, including the one at Townsend Park. Krings commented on the



Belle Plaine Design Committee Page 3 of 3
Regular Session
August 1, 2016
Unapproved

attractive new street signs and inquired about the replacement plan for all the street signs. Krant asked
for tall grasses and weeds to be mowed between the street and boulevard along the TH25/Walnut Street
corridor, near Court Street.

5.2. Upcoming Meeting.
1. Next Regular Meeting, 5:15 PM, Tuesday, September 6, 2016.

The Commissioners were reminded of the next meeting as listed.

6. ADJOURNMENT.

MOTION by Coop, second by Behnke, to adjourn at 6:04 p.m. ALL VOTED AYE.  MOTION CARRIED.

Respectfully submitted,

Patricia Krings
Recording Secretary



MEMORANDUM

DATE: October 3, 2016

TO: Design Committee Members

FROM: Cynthia Smith Strack, Community Development Director

RE: Item 4.1 Project Updates/Discussions

REQUEST: Project Updates/Discussion Future

GENERAL INFORMATION

Project Updates

Uplighting Trees Downtown: The City Council voted to postpone installation of uplighting for downtown
sidewalk trees this fall in favor of conducting additional research regarding hardwiring lights. Staff is
hopeful the issue will be addressed next year. We continue to believe the place-making value of the
lighting is a prudent and lasting investment. Thank you for your support and interest in this project

Highway 25 Entry Sign: Public Works Superintendent Fahey has developed a plan to secure the entry
sign adjacent to Highway 25 just south of the river bridge. Work will be done this fall.

Banners Hwy 25 River Bridge: The Chamber of Commerce purchased the banners on the Highway 25
bridge over the Mn. River. The fact two banners are missing was brought to the attention of the Chamber
of Commerce.

2017 Annual Budget: The EDA requested $25,000 be included in as a capital item in the 2017 City
budget for City entry signs in the Hwy 169 corridor. The request was denied.



Belle Plaine Design Committee: Agenda Item 4.1 – October 5, 2015 Page 2

Discussion Regarding Future DC Meeting Topics:
Input is requested from the Committee Members regarding future meeting topics. The EDA has
exhausted façade improvement program funds so it is unlikely design review of proposed loan activities
will be needed. This may provide an opportunity for the Committee to regroup and discuss priorities and
goals. Information regarding the purpose of the DC is attached for reference.

REQUEST
No action is required, just dialogue.



Belle Plaine City Code    Boards and Commissions 
Chapter 2  Page 2-10 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2-10 

  
SECTION 204.00  DESIGN COMMITTEE. 
 

204.01  Commission Established and Continued. 
204.02  Membership 
204.03  Terms, Vacancies, Oath, Compensation. 
204.04  Organization. 
204.05  Power and Duties. 

 
204.01  COMMISSION ESTABLISHED AND CONTINUED.   
 
The Design Committee is hereby established and continued.   
 
204.02  MEMBERSHIP. 
 
The Design Committee shall consist of four (4) appointed residents of Belle Plaine, one (1) 
representative from the Planning Commission, and one (1) City Council liaison.  The Council 
may appoint up to two alternates to serve in the absence of an appointed member.  
 
204.03 TERMS, VACANCIES, OATH, COMPENSATION 
 
Regular members and alternate members of the Commission shall be appointed to a term of four 
years. The terms of office shall begin on February 1 and shall expire on January 31. All members 
shall be appointed and may be removed by the City Council. Vacancies arising in the unexpired 
term shall be filled by Council appointment for the duration of the term. Every appointed member 
shall take an oath relating to the faithful discharge of those duties. Members may receive 
compensation as set by Council resolution. 
 
204.04  ORGANIZATION. 
 
Subd. 1.  Officers.  

 
A.  Election, Term of Office.  The Committee shall elect from among its appointed 
regular members, a chairperson, a vice-chairperson, and a secretary for a term of one 
year.  At the first regular meeting in February, the chair will call for nominations and the 
officers shall be elected by voice or written ballot from among those nominated. 
 
B.  Meetings, Records.  Regular meetings shall be held monthly unless no 
recommendations are required. At least three (3) days written notice of such meetings 
shall be given to the Commissioners. All meetings shall be guided by Roberts Rules of 
Order, Revised. 

 
C.  Special Meetings.  The Chairperson or any two (2) members of the Board may call a 
special meeting of the Board by filing a written statement with the City Administrator.  A 
special meeting shall be preceded by three-day posted notice (or, as an alternate, three-
day published notice) as well as three-day mailed notice to any person requesting 
particular notice of special meetings.  At least one day before the meeting, notice shall be 
mailed or delivered via telephone, facsimile, telegram, electronic mail, or personally to 
each member of the Board, or shall be left at his/her usual place of residence with some 
responsible person. 



Belle Plaine City Code    Boards and Commissions 
Chapter 2  Page 2-11 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2-11 

 
D.  Compliance with Open Meeting Law.   All meetings shall comply with the Minnesota 
State Open Meeting Law, M.S. § 471.705. 

 
E.  Quorum.  A majority of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. No action may be 
taken without a quorum. Less than a quorum may, however, adjourn any meeting, which 
may be held on a subsequent date without further notice, provided a quorum be present at 
such deferred meeting. 

 
204.05  POWERS AND DUTIES.   
 
The Design Committee is a committee appointed by the Mayor and City Council to prepare 
recommendations for Design components, potential funding sources for community-wide 
improvements and administer the Design Standards for properties in all industrial and commercial 
zoning districts as outlined in the Belle Plaine Design Manual, adopted September 2008.  
 
(Ord. 08-07, Repeal and Replace Section 204, Design Committee, Adopted October 6, 2008.) 
 
  

cynthias
Highlight



")

")

")")")")")")")")
")

")")")")
")")

")

")")")

")

")")

")

")")")")")")

")

")

")")
")

")")")")

")
")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")
")
")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")
")")")")")")")")")
")")")")")")
")
")")")
")")")")")
")")
")
")")")")")

")
")")

")
")")")")")

")")")

")")

")")")

")")")")")")")
")

")")")")
")

")
")")")")

")

")
")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")
")

")") ")")")")")")")")")")")
")")")")")
")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")
")

")
")

")")
")

")
")

")
")
")

")
")
")

")")")")")")")")")")")") ")")")")")")
")
")")

")")")")")")")")")")
")

")

")")")")")")")

")")

")")")

")
")

")

")")")
")

")

")

")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")

")")

")

")")")

")")")")

")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")

")")")

")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")

")")")")

")")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")

")")")

")")")")

")")")")")")")

")")

")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")

")")

")

")

")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")

")

")")

")

")

")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")

")

")

")")
")")")")

")

")")

")")

")

")")")")

")

")

")")

")")")")")")")")

")")

")")")

")")

")")")")")")")")

")")")")

")

")")

")

")")

")
")

")
")

")

")")

")")

")")")")")")")

")

")")
")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")
")

")

")

")

")

")
")")

")
")

")")")

")

")

")

")
")")")

") ")")")")

")

")

")
")")")")")

")

")
")")")

")")")")
")

")
")")")")")")")

")

")

")")")")")")")")
")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")
")

")

")

")

")

")")")

")

")")")")

")")
")")")")")")

")
")")

")")

")

")

")

")")")")")

")")")")")

")")")")")")

")

")

")")

")

")

")")

")")

")")

")

")")")

")")

")
")

")")")")")

")

")

")

")
")

")")

")")")")")")")
")")")

")

")
")")

")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")

")

")

")

")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")

")")")")")")

")

")

")")")")

")

")")")")

")
")")")

")

")
")
")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")
")
")")")")")")
")

")")

")

")")")")")")

")

")

")")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")")

")")")

")
")")")")

")")")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")

")

")")

")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")
")

")
")

")
")")")")")

")

")
")")")

")")") ")
")

")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")

")")")

")")")

")")
")

")

")
")

")")

")

")")")")")

")")")")")

")

")")

")
")")

")")")

")

")
")

")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")

")

")")")

")")")")")

")
")

")
")")")")")

")
")

")
")

")")")")

")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")
")")")")
")

")
")
")")")")")
")

")
")
")")")
")")")

")

")")")")")")

")

")
")")")")
")")")")")

")
")")

")")")")
")

")
")")")")

")

")

")

")

")

")")
")")")
")
")
")
")")")")")")")

")
")

")")")")")")

")

")

")")

")
")")")")

")")")")") ")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")") ")") ")")

")")")")

")")")")")")")") ")")")")")

")

")")")

")")")

")
")")")")")")

")
")")")")")")")
")

")
")")")")")")")

")
")

")
")")")")")
")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")
")

")

")
")

")")
")

")")

")

")")")")

")")")")

")

")")

")")")

")")

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")")")

")

")")")

")")

")

")

")")")

")")")")

")

")

")")

")")")

")

")

")

")

")

")")")")")

")")

")")

")

")
")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")
")
")

")

")")")")")")

")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")

")
")")")")")")")")

")
")

")")")")
")

")

")
")

")

")

")

")")")")

")")")") ")")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")

")")")")
")")

")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")

")")")")

")")

")

")")")

")")")

")")

")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")
")")")")")
")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")
")")")")
")")")")
")
")
")
")")")")")")")")")

")
")

")

")

")")")")")
")
")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")") ")")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")
")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")

")")")")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")

")

")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")

")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")")")")")")
")
")

")")")")")")")")")")")
")

")
")

")")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")")")")")")")

")

")")")")")")")")

")")")")")")

")
")

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(!(

k
k

k

k

k k

k
k

k

k

k k

k

k

k
k

k

k

k
k
k
k
k
kk

South St.

Prairie St.

Ash St.

E Orchard St.

Forest St.

Walnut St.

GeWX

?¾A@

?¾A@

GdWX

GbWX

GbWX

GdWX

GfWX

)y

)y

Ma
p D

oc
um

en
t: \

\ar
cs

erv
er1

\gi
s\B

EL
L\_

Ba
se

ma
p\E

SR
I\M

ap
s\2

01
6\C

om
p_

Pla
n\B

ell
_H

ist
ori

cM
ap

.m
xd

 | D
ate

 Sa
ve

d: 
9/2

2/2
01

6 2
:28

:47
 PM

2040 Comprehensive Plan
Belle Plaine, MN

Cultural Profile Map
September 2016

0 0.5
Miles

Source: MnDNR, MnGeo, ESRI, Mn SHPO

Highway

Street

River or Stream

City Limits

MUSA 2040

k Known Archeological Site

!( NRHP Listed Property

") MN SHPO Inventoried Property

Legend
!I



1

HistMain_I PROPNAME ADDRESS PROPCAT PROPTYPE

SC-BPC-001 house 2xx Eagle St. S. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-002 C. Graugert House 400 Main St. W. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-003 house 310 Main St. W. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-004 Milk Processing Plant Agricultural Processing property
SC-BPC-005 First Presbyterian Church xxx Main St. Religion church
SC-BPC-006 house 1xx Willow St. S. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-007 commercial building xxx Meridian St. S. Commerce commercial building
SC-BPC-008 commercial building xxx Main St. W. Commerce commercial building
SC-BPC-009 house 128 Main St. W. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-010 James Mangen House 310 Meridian St. N. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-011 house 3xx Meridian St. N. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-012 house 315 Meridian St. N. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-013 creamery xxx Meridian St. Agricultural Processing creamery
SC-BPC-014 Belle Plaine Hotel xxx Main St. E. Commerce hotel
SC-BPC-015 Muntag Building 115 Meridian St. S. Commerce commercial building
SC-BPC-016 house 126 Chestnut St. S. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-017 St. John's Lutheran Church xxx Chestnut St. Religion church
SC-BPC-018 St. John's Parochial School xxx Prairie Education school
SC-BPC-019 house 141 Chestnut St. S. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-020 Our Lady of the Prairie Catholic Church xxx Church St. E. Religion church
SC-BPC-021 house 206 Church St. E. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-022 Hooper-Bowler-Hillstrom House NW corner Court and Cedar Sts. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-023 Robert Stratton House 201 Cedar St. N. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-024 house xxx Main St. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-025 Episcopal Church of the Transfiguration NE corner Walnut and Church Sts. Religion church
SC-BPC-026 Sacred Heart Church xxx Elm St. Religion church
SC-BPC-027 house xxx Elm St. Domestic residence
SC-BPC-028 Bridge No. 5260 Mn. Hwy. 25 over Minnesota River Transportation bridge (metal high truss)
SC-BPT-001 farmhouse off U.S. Hwy. 169 Domestic residence
SC-BPT-002 School District No. 37 off Co. Hwy. 7 Education school
SC-BPT-003 Beider Brothers Sorgham Mill off Co. Hwy. 7 Agricultural Processing property

FYI State Historical Society Inventoried Properties


	1.1. AG_DESIGN_10-03-2016.pdf
	3.1. MIN_DESIGN_08-01-2016.pdf
	DC_4.1_Mem_Updates_What's_Next_10.06.16.pdf
	DC_4.1_ a. Purpose City Code.pdf
	FYI Map of SHPO Inventoried Properties.pdf
	FYI State Historical Society Inventoried Properties.pdf

